
Meeting contact Charlotte Lynch or email clynch@southribble.gov.uk

PLANNING COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 1ST APRIL, 2020, 6.00 PM

IMPORTANT INFORMATION: Coronavirus and Decision-
making

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the meeting of the 
Planning Committee scheduled for Wednesday 1 April 2020 
will not be held. 

The Director of Planning and Property in consultation with 
the Chair of the Planning Committee will be making use of 
urgency powers, as set out in Standing Order 35 of the 
Council Procedure Rules, to make decisions on the 
applications contained within this agenda. 

Any elected member of South Ribble Borough Council or 
member of the public may make written representations on 
any application for consideration by the Director of Planning 
and Property and the Chair of the committee. Please send 
comments via email to 
democraticservices@southribble.gov.uk for the attention of 
Charlotte Lynch. 

1 07/2020/00133/FUL - Suthers Star Garage, Liverpool 
Road, Walmer Bridge, Preston

(Pages 5 - 12)

Report of the Director of Planning and Property attached. 

2 07/2020/00195/HOH - 167 Brownedge Road, Lostock Hall (Pages 13 - 16)

Report of the Director of Planning and Property attached. 

3 07/2020/00019/VAR - Lincluden, Newgate Lane, 
Whitestake, Preston

(Pages 17 - 28)

Report of the Director of Planning and Property attached. 

Gary Hall
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Planning Committee Councillors 
Caleb Tomlinson (Chair), Malcolm Donoghue (Vice-Chair), Will Adams, 
James Flannery, Mary Green, Jon Hesketh, Cliff Hughes, Keith Martin, 
Christine Melia, Caroline Moon, David Shaw, Phil Smith and Barrie Yates

Public Document Pack

mailto:democraticservices@southribble.gov.uk


Full details of planning applications, associated documents including related 
consultation replies can be found on the Public Access for planning system, 
searching for the application using the Simple Search box. 
http://publicaccess.southribble.gov.uk/online-applications/

http://publicaccess.southribble.gov.uk/online-applications/


1

Application Number 07/2020/00133/FUL

Address Suthers Star Garage Limited
Liverpool Road
Walmer Bridge
Preston
PR4 5JS

Applicant  Suthers Star Garage Ltd - Mr Philip Suthers

Agent
Mr Richard Every
Chetwynde Liverpool Road
Sollom
Preston
PR4 6HP

Development Removal of existing gas tanks. Construction of new car 
service reception/waiting area and customer wc. 
Replacement of windows and shutters to west elevation 
to provide relocated entrance to forecourt service station.  
New windows at first floor level - change of use from 
storage to office space at first floor level

Officer Recommendation
Officer Name

Approval with Conditions 
Mr Chris Sowerby

Date application valid       03.02.2020
Target Determination Date       30.03.2020
Extension of Time

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



2

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The application is brought before the Planning Committee as the applicant is related to a 
serving South Ribble Councillor.

2. REPORT SUMMARY

2.1 The application relates to Suther's Star Garage, a fuel station and MOT/service garage 
located at the junction between Liverpool Road and Liverpool Old Road in Walmer Bridge 
which is within an area of land designated as B1: Existing Built-Up Area in the South Ribble 
Local Plan.

2.2 The proposal is for a single storey extension to form a new customer reception and 
waiting area for the existing MOT/service garage together with the change of use of the first 
floor from storage to ancillary offices, the insertion of new windows and the removal of 
existing above ground gas tanks.

2.3 The proposed single storey extension measures 4.5m (width) x 7.1m (length) x 3.35m 
(height) with a flat roof.  The extension would be constructed off the western side elevation of 
the building, which faces Liverpool Road, where two gas tanks are currently located.  The 
extension would be constructed in facing brick to match the existing building and would be 
used to provide a customer waiting area and customer WC.

2.4 The proposed extension and alterations are sympathetic to the design of the existing 
building and will not have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the area.  
The proposed inter-relationships with neighbouring properties are considered to be 
acceptable and will not result in an undue impact on the amenity of the neighbouring property 
in terms of overshadowing / overdominance.

2.5 The proposed extension would not result in a loss of car parking and would not alter the 
existing access arrangements.  Consequently the proposal will not have a material highway 
impact.

2.6 The proposal accords with Policies 1 and 17 of the Core Strategy together with Policies 
B1 and G17 of the South Ribble Local Plan.  The application is therefore recommended for 
approval subject to the imposition of conditions.

3. APPLICATION SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA

3.1 The application relates to Suthers’ Star Garage, a fuel station and MOT/service garage 
located at the junction between Liverpool Road and Liverpool Old Road in Walmer Bridge.

3.2 To the north, south and east of the site are residential properties with open fields beyond 
Liverpool Road to the west.  A dispersed village centre is present to the north along Liverpool 
Old Road.  To the north along Liverpool Road is a small industrial estate with the Fox Cub 
Public House along Liverpool Road to the south of the site.

3.3 The application site is within an area of land designated as B1: Existing Built-Up Area in 
the South Ribble Local Plan.

4. SITE HISTORY

4.1 Numerous planning applications have been received over the years relating to the 
commercial operations on the site. 

Page 4



3

4.2 The most recent planning application was in 2008 (07/2008/0033/FUL) and was for the 
removal of the front roller shutter door and formation of display window to facilitate an 
extended shop area together with the formation of two first floor windows to the front.  This 
application was approved.

5. PROPOSAL

5.1 Planning permission is sought for a single storey extension to form a new customer 
reception and waiting area for the existing MOT/service garage together with the change of 
use of the first floor from storage to ancillary offices, the insertion of new windows and the 
removal of existing above ground gas tanks.

5.2 The proposed single storey extension measures 4.5m (width) x 7.1m (length) x 3.35m 
(height) with a flat roof.  The extension would be constructed off the western side elevation of 
the building, which faces Liverpool Road, where two gas tanks are currently located.  Glazing 
is proposed along the southern elevation of the extension with an access door on the 
western elevation.  The extension would be constructed in facing brick to match the existing 
building and would be used to provide a customer waiting area and customer WC.

5.3 The application also proposes the change of use of an 8.9m x 11.3m first floor room from 
storage space to ancillary office space together with the insertion of 7 windows on the first 
floor western elevation facing Liverpool Road.

6. REPRESENTATIONS

6.1 One letter of representation has been received which neither supports nor objects to the 
proposal, instead commenting that the existing fence along the northern boundary should not 
be removed or replaced.

7. CONSULTATION REPLIES

Environmental Health have raised no objections to the proposal recommending the 
imposition of conditions relating to the implementation of a dust management plan during 
construction, restricting hours of construction, contaminated land and restrictions on external 
lighting.

A condition recommended relating to the burning of waste cannot be imposed as it does not 
meet the tests for condition as it is covered by other legislation (i.e. environmental 
protection).

8. MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Policy Considerations

8.1 i)  NPPF
8.1.1 The NPPF promotes a presumption in favour of sustainable development and supports 
sustainable economic development, stating “Planning policies and decisions should help 
create the conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt.  Significant weight 
should be placed on the need to support economic growth and productivity, taking into 
account both local business need and wider opportunities for development.” (para. 80)

8.2 ii) Core Strategy Policy Considerations
8.2.1 Policy 1 of the Core Strategy is entitled ‘Locating Growth’ and encourages the 
focussing of growth and investment in the Key Service Centres of Chorley and Leyland and 
the other main urban areas in South Ribble.

Page 5



4

8.2.2Policy 10 of the Core Strategy is entitled ‘Employment Premises and Sites’ and 
highlights the need to protect sites last used and allocated for employment for future 
employments use.

8.3 iii) South Ribble Local Plan
8.3.1 The site is within an area of land designated as B1: Existing Built-Up Areas.  Policy B1 
permits the re-use and redevelopment of land and buildings provided that:

i) the development complies with the requirements for access parking and services, as 
set out
elsewhere in the Plan;

ii) is in keeping with the character and appearance of the area; and
iii) will not adversely affect the amenities of nearby residents.

8.3.2 This will be assessed in the following sections of this report.

8.4 Character / Appearance
8.4.1 Policy 17 of the Core Strategy and Policy G17 of the Local Plan, sets out design criteria 
for new development and requires development to be well related to neighbouring buildings 
and the locality in terms of its size, scale and intensity (plot coverage).  In consideration of 
the above, the local distinctiveness and character of the local area have been assessed.  
The immediate surrounding area is predominantly residential with the existing building 
occupying a prominent location as a standalone development.  The proposed extension and 
alterations are sympathetic to the design of the existing building and will not have a 
detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the area.

8.5 Relationship To Neighbours
8.5.1 A minimum distance of 1.5m would be present from the front corner of the adjacent 
property at 383 Liverpool Road to the blank side elevation of the proposed extension.  Whilst 
a first floor dormer window is present on the southern side pitch of 383 Liverpool Road, this 
window is set midway back on the dwelling and would not directly face the proposed 
extension.  This inter-relationship is considered to be acceptable and will not result in an 
undue impact on the amenity of the neighbouring property in terms of overshadowing / 
overdominance.

8.5.2 There are no properties to the west of the site where the newly formed first floor 
windows would face.

8.5.3 The proposed inter-relationships are acceptable and accord with the relevant minimum 
spatial separation standards.

8.6 Highway Issues
8.6.1 The proposed extension would not result in a loss of car parking and would not alter the 
existing access arrangements.  Consequently the proposal will not have a material highway 
impact.

8.7 Noise / Disturbance Issues
8.7.1 Environmental Health have raised no objections to the proposed change of use of part 
of the first floor of the building from storage to ancillary offices.   

8.8 Other Issues
8.8.1 A neighbour has made comments about the existing boundary treatment and stated a 
desire for its retention.  The existing plans show the retention of the existing fence together 
with the extension being built from part of the existing brick wall along the boundary.  As this 
wall appears to form part of the common boundary with 383 Liverpool Road any works would 

Page 6



5

fall under the Party Wall Act, which would require notice is served on the neighbour by the 
applicant. 

9. CONCLUSION

9.1 The proposed single storey extension to form a new customer reception and waiting area 
for the existing MOT/service garage together with the change of use of the first floor from 
storage to offices, the insertion of new windows and the removal of existing above ground 
gas tanks is considered to be acceptable.  The proposed development is not considered to 
be out of character with the area and will not adversely affect the amenities of nearby 
residential properties.  The proposed development is deemed to be in accord with Policies 1 
and 17 of the Core Strategy together with Policies B1 and G17 of the South Ribble Local 
Plan.  The application is therefore recommended for approval subject to the imposition of 
conditions.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval with Conditions. 

RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS:

1. That the development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years 
beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON:  Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990.

2. All external facing materials shall match in colour, form and texture to those on the 
existing building. 

REASON: In the interests of the visual amenity of the area and so that the Local 
Planning Authority shall be satisfied as to the details in accordance with Policy 17 in 
the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and Policy G17 in the South Ribble Local Plan 
2012-2026

3. The first floor office use hereby approved shall be used wholly in conjunction with, 
and ancillary to, the use of MOT/service garage and petrol filling station.  In particular 
it shall not be occupied, sold, disposed of or otherwise let separately.

REASON: To ensure the provision and retention of adequate on-site parking facilities 
and to accord with Policy F1 and Policy G17 in the South Ribble Local Plan 2012-
2026

4. Prior to the commencement of any works on site a Dust Management Plan shall be 
submitted, for written approval, to the local planning authority. The Dust Management 
Plan shall identify all areas of the site and site operations where dust may be 
generated and further identify control measures to ensure dust and soil does not 
travel beyond the site boundary. The Dust Management Plan shall consist of a 
suitable risk assessment in line with national guidance. 
Once agreed the identified control measures shall be implemented and maintained 
throughout the duration of the site preparation and construction phase of the 
development. 

Page 7



6

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the nearby residents in accordance with 
Policy 17 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and the NPPF. 

NOTE TO APPLICANT: A currently accepted risk assessment methodology includes 
that contained within the IAQM 'Guidance on the assessment of dust from demolition 
and construction' or the Major of London 'The control of dust and emissions from 
construction and demolition'

5. During the site preparation and construction of the development no machinery, plant 
or powered tools shall be operated outside the hours of 08:00 to 18:00 Monday to 
Friday 09:00 - 13:00 on Saturdays. No construction shall take place at anytime on 
Sundays or nationally recognised Bank Holidays. 

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of neighbouring properties in accordance with 
Policy 17 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and the NPPF. 

6. Prior to the commencement of any works on site, the following information shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority (LPA) for approval in writing: 

(a) A full desk study which assesses the risk of the potential for on-site contamination 
and ground gases and migration of both on and off-site contamination and ground 
gases, in line with BS10175:2011 +A1:2013. 

(b) If the desk study identifies potential contamination and/or ground gases, a detailed 
site investigation shall be carried out to address the nature, degree and distribution of 
contamination and/or ground gases and shall include an identification and 
assessment of the risk to receptors as defined under the Environmental Protection 
Act 1990, Part 2A, focusing primarily on risks to human health and controlled waters. 
The investigation shall also address the implications of the health and safety of site 
workers, of nearby occupied buildings, on services and landscaping schemes, and on 
wider environmental receptors including ecological systems and property. 

The sampling and analytical strategy shall be submitted to and be approved in writing 
by the LPA prior to the start of the site investigation survey. 

(c) A remediation statement, detailing the recommendations and remedial measures 
to be implemented within the site. 

(d) On completion of the development/remedial works, the developer shall submit 
written confirmation, in the form of a verification report, to the LPA, that all works were 
completed in accordance with the agreed Remediation Statement. 
Any works identified in these reports shall be undertaken when required with all 
remedial works implemented by the developer prior to occupation of the first and 
subsequent dwellings. 

REASON: To ensure that the site investigation and remediation strategy will not 
cause pollution of ground and surface waters both on and off site, and the site cannot 
be capable of being determined as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 in accordance with Policy 17 of the Central 
Lancashire Development Plan Policies G14 and G17 in the South Ribble Local Plan 
(2012-2026).

7. No external flooding lighting or security lights shall be installed at the permitted 
development without first obtaining written permission from the local planning 
authority. 

Page 8



7

Reason: In the interests of the amenity and to safe guard the living conditions of the 
nearby residents in accordance with Policy 17in the Central Lancashire Core Strategy 
and the NPPF.

8. The development, hereby permitted, shall be carried out in accordance with the 
submitted approved plans P10, P100, P101, P200 and P201

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory standard of development in accordance with 
Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and Policy G17 of the South Ribble 
Local Plan.

RELEVANT POLICY

1 Locating Growth (Core Strategy Policy)

17 Design of New Buildings  (Core Strategy Policy)

POLB1 Existing Built-Up Areas

POLG14 Unstable or Contaminated Land

POLG17 Design Criteria for New Development

Note:  

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Application Number 07/2020/00195/HOH

Address 167 Brownedge Road
Lostock Hall
Lancashire
PR5 5AH

Applicant Mr Tomlinson 

Development Single storey extension to side/rear.

Officer Recommendation Approval with Conditions 

Date application valid     19.02.2020
Target Determination Date     15.04.2020
Extension of Time     None

Introduction

This application is presented to Committee because the applicant is a serving Council 
Officer. 

Report Summary

The applicant seeks permission to erect a small domestic extension to side/rear of the 
residential property.

The scheme has been well designed, relates well to both the main dwelling and wider 
environment, yet the property retains acceptable levels of amenity and parking spaces. The 
proposal complies with the relevant policies of the South Ribble Local Plan and Residential 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



2

Extensions Supplementary Planning Document and is recommended for approval subject to 
conditions.
 
 Application Site and Surrounding Area

The application refers to a two-storey semi-detached dwellinghouse located towards the 
centre of Brownedge Road; a wholly residential area allocated as Existing Built Up Area by 
South Ribble Local Plan Policy B1

Site History

There is one planning application on the history of this site – ref 07/1998/0776 for single 
storey extension. Approved by Committee February 1999.

Proposal

Description of works

The application proposes a single storey extension to side/rear which would be 6m deep, 
project 3.3m from the side of the property and built next to the existing rear extension. A 
pitched roof is proposed with 5 no. roof lights and will extend over the existing rear extension 
at a height of 2.4m to the eaves with a maximum height of 3.5m.

The construction will be of materials to match the existing property namely; facing brickwork, 
grey roof tiles and UPVC windows and doors.

Representations

Summary of Publicity

Six neighbouring properties consulted but representation has not been made.

Summary of Responses

On this occasion consultation was not necessary/required

Material Considerations

Policy Background

The site is situated within an Existing Built-Up Areas where Policy B1 in the South Ribble 
Local Plan is relevant. Development will be permitted within existing built up areas provided 
the proposal is in keeping with the character and appearance of the area and will not 
adversely affect the amenities of nearby residents. The proposed development does not 
result in a loss of off-street parking and also does not propose to increase the number of 
bedrooms within the dwelling.

In addition, the South Ribble Residential Design Guidance SPD notes that all extensions 
shall remain visually subservient to the parent building, should enjoy adequate setbacks to 
ensure visual subservience, shall not result in an unacceptable loss of light or privacy to 
neighbouring properties, or have an overbearing or over dominant impact on neighbouring 
residents.

The proposal complies with Policy B1 and G17 of the Adopted Local Plan, the South Ribble 
Residential Extensions SPD and Policy 17 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and 
therefore recommended for approval.

Relationship to Neighbours

Page 12



3

The proposed side extension would be 1.1m from the common boundary with no: 165 
Brownedge Road and 2m from the property itself. No 169 Brownedge Road is the adjoining 
semi-detached property, the proposal would sit some 3.7m from the common boundary and 
will be screened by the existing rear extension.
To the rear are no’s: 45 and 47 Green Drive. The proposal would sit some 18m from the 
common boundary to both properties and 32m to the properties themselves. Due to the 
separation distance between the two properties it is considered that there will be no undue 
impact upon residential amenity.

Design

This development proposal relates well to neighbouring buildings and the extended locality, 
including a high-quality design with appropriate materials to match the existing dwelling.

Parking Arrangements 

The front of the property has more than adequate parking areas for a property of this size. 
The proposed development does not result in a loss of off-street parking and also does not 
propose to increase the number of bedrooms within the dwelling.

CONCLUSION

The scheme has been well designed, relates well to both the main dwelling and wider 
environment, and the property retains acceptable levels of amenity and parking spaces. The 
proposal complies with the relevant policies of the South Ribble Local Plan and Residential 
Extensions Supplementary Planning Document and is recommended for approval subject 
to conditions.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval with Conditions. 

RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS:

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this permission.
REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990.

2. All external facing materials shall match in colour, form and texture to those on the 
existing building. 
REASON: In the interests of the visual amenity of the area and so that the Local 
Planning Authority shall be satisfied as to the details in accordance with Policy 17 in 
the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and Policy G17 in the South Ribble Local Plan 
2012-2026

3. The development, hereby permitted, shall be carried out in accordance with the 
submitted approved plans Dwg Tomlinson-1
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
development  

RELEVANT POLICY

National Planning Policy Framework

Central Lancashire Core Strategy
17 Design of New Buildings

Page 13



4

South Ribble Local Plan
B1 Existing Built Up Area
F1 Car Parking
G17 Design Criteria for New Development 

South Ribble Residential Extensions Supplementary Planning Document

Note:  

Householder Informative
1. Attention is drawn to the condition(s) attached to this planning permission.  In order to 
discharge these conditions, an Application for Approval of Details Reserved by Condition 
form must be submitted, together with details required by each condition imposed.  The fee 
for such an application is £34.  The forms can be found on South Ribble Borough Council's 
website www.southribble.gov.uk

Page 14



1

Addendum to Application 07/2020/00019/VAR

Address  Lincluden, Newgate Lane, Whitestake

Applicant S&G Plant Hire Ltd

Agent            Acland Bracewell Surveyors Ltd
           The Barrons
           Church Road
           Tarleton PR4 6UP

Development Variation of conditions imposed on permission 07/2011/0726/FUL

This application was deferred by Members (Feb 2020) to allow Officers to provide revised 
wordings for recommended conditions so as to restrict storage to the inside of the workshop 
building only and to define specifically what agricultural vehicles may be stored on land to the 
south of the building.

When used properly, conditions can enhance development by mitigating adverse effects to 
allow development where it would otherwise be refused. The power to attach conditions to a 
planning permission must be clearly seen to be fair, reasonable and practicable, and 
conditions must be tailored to tackle specific problems, rather than be standardised or used 
to impose broad unnecessary controls. The Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (Section 
70(1)(a) enables the Council to impose “such conditions as they think fit”, but Paragraph 55 
of the National Planning Policy Framework is clear that planning conditions should be kept to 
a minimum, and only used where they satisfy the following tests. Each test needs to be 
satisfied for each condition which the Council wishes to apply

1. necessary;
2. relevant to planning;
3. relevant to the development to be permitted;
4. enforceable;
5. precise; and
6. reasonable in all other respects.

The original Officer recommendation as detailed in the accompanying report does not 
change. This recommendation remains that the variation of conditions be approved with the 
wording brought to Committee in February 2020.

In line with Members wishes an alternative set of conditions is put forward for Members to 
debate. Members must be mindful however that Officers are of the opinion that conditions 3 
and 4 DO NOT pass the tests required of the Town & Country Planning Act and could be 
subject to challenge; particularly test 6 (reasonableness) which could prevent proper and full 
lawful use of the workshop. Alternative conditions for discussion are as follows – 
amendments are highlighted in bold for your convenience

1. The development, hereby permitted, shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans Dwg 20.001.PL01 Rev A and 20.001.PL02 (Huntar Haus)
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of development

2. The area of the site identified by approved plan 20.001.PL01 Rev A (Hunter Haus) for 
'Parking' shall remain free for the parking of vehicles (other than plant and machinery) for 
the duration of the approved use.
REASON: To allow for the effective use of the parking areas

Page 15

Agenda Item 3



2

3. All plant machinery and parts storage associated with the business shall only occur 
within the existing workshop building identified by approved plan 20.001.PL01 Rev A (Hunter 
Haus).  No machinery, plant, raw materials, finished or unfinished products, parts, crates, 
packing materials or waste shall be stored externally on the site outside of the workshop 
building.
REASON:  To safeguard the amenity and character of the area and to safeguard the living 
conditions of nearby residents particularly with regard to noise and/or disturbance

4. Only domestic sized agricultural vehicles and agricultural machinery associated with 
maintenance of the agricultural land to the west of the building (as shown on the same 
approved plan) shall be permitted to be stored in the area to the south of the existing 
workshop building as identified by approved plan 20.001.PL01 Rev A (Hunter Haus). 
Tractors and commercial sized agricultural machinery and vehicles shall not be stored 
externally on site at any time
REASON:  To safeguard the amenity and character of the area and to safeguard the living 
conditions of nearby residents particularly with regard to noise and/or disturbance

5. Prior to first use of the storage area on the northern side, the boundary fence 
identified on approved plan 20.001.PL01 Rev A shall be erected. The approved acoustic 
screen/fence shall be retained and maintained at all times thereafter.
REASON: To ensure the provision and retention of adequate screening in the interest of 
amenity and to accord with Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire Core Strategy

6. No maintenance work, the loading of vehicles or the acceptance of deliveries shall 
take place outside the following times:
0730 hrs to 1800 hrs Monday to Friday 
0800 hrs to 1300 hrs on Saturdays.  
No work shall take place on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.
REASON:  To safeguard the living conditions of nearby residents particularly with regard to 
the effects of noise and to accord with Quality of Development Policy QD1 in the South 
Ribble Local Plan.

Page 16



3

Application Number 07/2020/00019/VAR

Address Lincluden, Newgate Lane, Whitestake

Applicant S&G Plant Hire Ltd

Agent            Acland Bracewell Surveyors Ltd
           The Barrons
           Church Road
           Tarleton PR4 6UP

Development Variation of conditions imposed on permission 
07/2011/0726/FUL

Officer Recommendation Approval with Conditions 

Date application valid      16.01.20
Target Determination Date      12.03.20
Extension of Time      03.04.20

Page 17



4

Report Summary

1.1. This application seeks to vary conditions imposed on planning permission 
07/011/0726/FUL which was for the of erection a single storey building for use as a workshop 
following the demolition of an existing workshop.

1.2. The application has been made in part to regularise activities currently undertaken on 
the site which Officers are of the opinion are in breach of conditions imposed on planning 
permission 07/2011/0726/FUL and to amend current ways of working to try and reduce the 
impact site operations are having on neighbouring residential properties.  In order to secure 
these changes condition 2 is proposed to be varied in order to restrict external operations in 
certain areas of the site. 

1.3. This variation of condition application provides the Local Planning Authority with the 
opportunity to impose reworded/additional conditions which would assist the Council by 
providing more robust conditions to enforce against should there be any future breaches on 
the site.  Officers are of the opinion that condition 12 on the current planning permission, 
which relates to the external use of machinery and operations, is currently ambiguous and 
may be considered unenforceable at appeal should a breach of conditions notice be issued.  
A key benefit of this variation of condition application is the opportunity for the Local Planning 
Authority to also amend condition 12 to provide a clearer condition with greater confidence in 
its enforceability.  

1.4. Where an application to vary conditions is granted, the effect is the issue of a new 
planning permission sitting alongside, rather than as amendment to the original permission 
which remains intact and un-amended. For this reason, earlier conditions which have not 
been discharge would also be re-imposed. 

1.5. In response to publicity four letters of representation have been received. Comments 
raised by statutory consultees have been dealt with either by amendments to the scheme or 
by condition

1.6. In policy terms the proposal is considered compliant, and having regard to the 
comments of statutory bodies and the above commentary, it is recommended that the 
application should be approved subject to the imposition of conditions
    
2. Application Site and Surrounding Area

2.1. The application refers to a commercial site located to the western side of Newgate 
Lane, Whitestake. ‘Fern Hollow’ – residential formerly known as Lincluden and currently 
owned and occupied by the applicant – lies immediately north-east; its rear garden abuts the 
site. Spanning beyond in the north are ‘The Conifers’, ‘Hazelwood’ (bungalows) and a third 
plot with extant permission for one bungalow (07/2015/1786/FUL). ‘Hazelwood’ and the 
unbuilt bungalow face the commercial unit across Lincluden’s rear garden. Directly facing 
across Newgate Lane are two storey height, corrugated, agricultural style buildings.

2.2. To the south across an area of open land are two-storey dwellings addressed onto 
Chain House Lane – ‘Russel House’ and ‘Haslemere’, whose rear gardens north-east corner 
connects with the sites south-western corner. There is a summer house immediately 
adjacent to this boundary. The Old Post Office (derelict) currently inhabits the corner of 
Chain House and Newgate Lanes but permission is in place for a two-storey dwelling 
(07/2017/1671/FUL).  The site is bound on the southern side by mature hedgerow and trees. 
A small paddock sized area of land in the ownership of the applicant and used as a small-
holding sits to the west with hedgerow screening beyond. Domestic fencing denotes the 
boundary with Fern Hollow (north).

Page 18



5

2.3. The building is operated by S&G Plant Services Ltd who rent, maintain and repair plant 
and machinery. Plant hire occurs from a separate site. Plant, in the form of mini-diggers, are 
delivered to the Newgate Lane site generally once a week in bulk, upgraded to conform with 
British Standards and then dispatched in bulk to clients.

2.4. The site is designated by Policy G1 (Green Belt) of the South Ribble Local Plan. 

3. Site Context / Planning History 

3.1. There are ten applications on the history of this site. The most relevant are:

 07/2010/0791/CLU - Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for the use of 
building as a workshop/storage in connection with vehicle repair and maintenance. 
Approved December 2010

 07/2011/0496/FUL - Erection of single storey building (12.2m x 22.8m) for the use as a 
workshop following demolition of existing workshop. Refused September 2011

 07/2011/0726/FUL - Erection of single storey building (12.2m x 22.8m) for the use as a 
workshop following demolition of existing workshop - Amended scheme of planning 
refusal 07/2011/0496/FUL. Approved December 2011 and partially discharged 
07/2013/0201/DIS

 07/2014/0017/COU - Division of site to separate domestic dwelling and curtilage from 
existing workshop and associated hardstanding to create two individual uses (amended 
description). Approved Feb 2014

3.2. The Council’s Enforcement records also show that a Breach of Planning Conditions 
notice was issued to the applicant in 2013 giving 28 days for compliance. The notice stated 
that the applicant was in breach of conditions 11 and 12 (hours of operation and external 
activity). In August 2014 the enforcement case was closed with no further complaints 
received.  Further complaints alleging breach of conditions have then been received in 2015, 
2018 and 2019 with the basis generally being operations taking place on site outside of 
permitted hours and noise disturbance from external activities taking place on the site.

4. Proposal

4.1. The site comprises a detached commercial building located to the rear of the site.  The 
area of hardstanding along the southern boundary of the site is currently used for storage of 
plant vehicles (namely mini-diggers) and parts.  Mini-diggers are then moved from external 
storage area into the workshop where modifications are undertaken to the machinery.  Once 
modifications are complete the mini-diggers are then moved back to the storage area.  A 
large vehicle manoeuvring/parking area is located immediately adjacent to Newgate Lane 
which is used for the delivery and dispatching of plant machinery – which the applicant states 
is generally on a weekly basis. 

4.2. Condition 12 of planning permission 07/2011/0726/FUL states:

“No machinery, equipment or work activity shall be carried out or used externally of the 
workshop building that will create an audible noise at any occupied neighbouring properties 
to the development.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity and character of the area and to safeguard the living 
conditions of nearby residents particularly with regard to noise and/or disturbance.”

4.3. The proposal seeks permission for changes to the site layout that the applicant 
believes would allow operations to continue without Condition 12 being breached.  The 

Page 19



6

external storage of plant machinery and parts is proposed to be relocated along the northern 
boundary of the site (to the area of the site adjacent to the property owned and resided in by 
the applicant) with the area of hardstanding along the southern boundary close to the 
residential properties of ‘Russel House’ and ‘Haslemere’ being restricted solely to the parking 
of agricultural machinery associated with the maintenance of the small-holding to the west.  
A new field gate across is also proposed to allow access to the paddock from this section of 
the site. The application also proposes installation of a 2m high, close boarded fence along 
the northern side of this area to screen Fern Hollows rear garden. 

4.4. At the time that the original permission was granted in 2011 the Local Planning 
Authority did not impose conditions requiring that development be implemented in 
accordance with the submitted approved plans.  In such cases where the Local Planning 
Authority has been required to impose an approved plans condition on a variation of 
condition application it has been standard practice to vary the condition imposed to secure 
the details of external materials.  The applicant is therefore applying for condition 2 to the 
varied in order to provide reference to the submitted site layout plan which the permission is 
proposed to be secured against.  

4.5. Condition 2 of planning permission 07/2011/0726/FUL currently states:

“That no work shall be commenced until satisfactory details of the colour and texture of the 
facing and roofing materials to be used have been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority.  (When brick, tile, slate etc samples are due for inspection by the 
Authority please telephone the relevant planning officer to arrange inspection of the samples 
on site.)

REASON: To ensure the satisfactory detailed appearance of the development in accordance 
with Quality of Development Policy (as described in the policy section) in the South Ribble 
Local Plan.”

It is proposed that condition 2 be amended to state:

"That development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted 
amended approved plans reference ‘Proposed Site Layout and Boundary Treatment Plan 
20.001.PL01.

The detail of the colour and texture of the facing and roofing materials shall remain as agreed 
under discharge of condition application 07/2013/0201/DIS.”

4.6. Where an application to vary conditions is granted, the effect is the issue of a new 
planning permission sitting alongside, rather than as amendment to the original permission 
which remains intact and un-amended. For this reason, earlier conditions which have not 
been discharge would also be re-imposed. 

4.7. Note: For the avoidance of doubt it should be noted that whilst maintenance work, the 
loading of vehicles and acceptance of deliveries may be controlled by condition, unrelated 
vehicular movements within, to and from the site do not constitute development and as such 
do not require planning permission. As a licensed HGV operator the applicant is also 
separately permitted to store and run 3 no: HGV’s from the site, although at the time of the 
last enforcement investigation this was not taking place.

Page 20



7

5. Summary of Supporting Documents

5.1. The application is accompanied by the following:

 Location plan (20.001.PL02: Huntar Haus)
 Proposed site layout and boundary treatment (20.001.PL01 Rev A: Huntar Haus 

Planning Design)

6. Representations

6.1. Summary of Publicity

6.1.1.A site notice has been posted, and 10 neighbouring properties consulted. Some 
neighbours were omitted from the initial consultation and as a precautionary measure a 
second batch of letters was sent out. Ward Councillor have also been notified

6.2. Letters of Objection or Support

6.2.1.At the time of writing this report four letters of objection have been received. Comments 
are summarised as follows. Late responses will be reported verbally at Committee

Highways
 Damage to vehicles from passing HGV lorries in a residential area.
 Access onto Newgate Lane from Chain House Lane is dangerous and cannot 

accommodate HGV’s from the site
 Increased HGV’s accessing Newgate Lane
 Unlawful use of the hardstanding for storage

Residential Amenity
 Loss of amenity and visual appearance/outlook if business is allowed to expand
 Noise, smells and air quality problems already a problem. This would increase if 

allowed to relocate closer to dwellings in the north
 Plant would be ‘within a few metres of boundary and back door’

Other
 Lack of notification – several households were omitted from the initial consultation. This 

was identified early in the process and a second round of letters posted as a precaution
 Applicant has already breached conditions imposed on earlier permissions. 

Respondents question lack of enforcement. Conversely separate resident questions costs to 
Council of continuous monitoring
 Impact on the Green Belt
 ‘Workshop isn’t the main use’
 There is no reason why if approved the applicant could not use both sides of the 

building for storage

Officer comment in response – Objection has been made with regards to damage from, and 
problems caused by increasing number of HGV lorries in what is described as a residential 
location. Newgate Lane is home to 27 dwellings and four separate commercial enterprises - 
the applicant’s site, Newgate Nurseries (large garden centre), a farm/commercial building 
facing Lincluden and a depot to the rear of ‘Overdale’ which in 1993 was granted permission 
for ‘storage and distribution of fruit and vegetable produce’. Each of these businesses would 
use HGV vehicles to transport goods to and from their own sites and there is no evidence to 
prove that problems arise solely from the applicant’s site. Use of the site is not expected to 

Page 21



8

change other than external re-configuration. Consequently, HGV numbers and any 
associated problems are also not expected to rise.  

7. Summary of Responses

7.1. Lancashire County Council Highways has no objections to the proposal

7.2. Environmental Health make the following comments. Proposed amendments to 
Condition 12 and recommended new conditions relating to vehicle storage, boundary fence 
erection and hours of working as suggested are also felt appropriate.

‘The application to regularise activities on this site to amend current ways of working and to 
reduce the impact of site operations on neighbouring residents is agreeable from an 
Environmental Health perspective. Upon reviewing previous conditions imposed on site it is 
agreed that condition 12 is ambiguous and it should be made clearer to ensure that 
enforcement can be undertaken on the site if the condition is breached. The proposal to 
change the layout of the site will have a positive impact on neighbouring residents with the 
storage of external plant machinery and parts being relocated along the northern boundary of 
the site and the hardstanding along the southern boundary being restricted solely to the 
parking of agricultural machinery. In addition, the installation of a 2m high close boarded 
acoustic fence along the northern side of this area to screen Fern Hollow’s rear garden will 
have a positive impact on reducing noise from the site. The following amended/additional 
conditions are considered to be necessary’. 

8. Material Considerations

8.1. Site Allocation Policy /Green Belt Development

9.1.3. Whilst the site is within the Green Belt, the principle of the use of the site as a 
workshop for plant machinery has previously been established by the granting of planning 
permission 07/2011/0496/FUL.  The one ‘built development’ material change proposed is the 
erection of a 2m high timber boarded fence along 23m of the northern boundary.  Such 
boundary treatments are not uncommon in the Green Belt and will not have an adverse 
impact on the openness of the Green Belt. 

8.2. Additional Policy Background 

Additional policy of marked relevance to this proposal is as follows: 

8.2.1. Economic Policy

8.2.1..1. The National Planning Policy Framework (2018) at Para 11: provides a 
presumption in favour of sustainable economic growth and development, with Chapter 6 
(Building a strong and competitive economy) committing to economic growth, job creation 
and prosperity in order to meet the challenges of competition, whilst ensuring that the 
planning system does everything it can to support sustainable economic growth (Para 80). 

8.2.2. Highways/Transport Policy

8.2.2..1. NPPF (2018) Chapter 9 (Promoting sustainable transport) states that 
‘developments should be located and designed to accommodate the efficient delivery of 
goods, and access by service and emergency vehicles’ (Para 110). Core Strategy Policy 3 
(Travel) also seeks to improve the road network by amongst other things reviewing work 
place parking, whilst Local Plan Policy F1 (Parking Standards) requires all development 
proposals to provide car parking and servicing space in accordance with parking standards 
adopted by the Council. 

Page 22



9

8.2.3. Design Policy

8.2.3..1. Core Strategy Chapter 7 (Requiring Good Design) and Local Plan Policy G17 
(Design of New Buildings) each attach great importance to the design of the built 
environment, requiring proposals to take account of the character, appearance and amenity 
of the local area, and to highways and pedestrian safety.

8.3. Character and Appearance and Relationship to Neighbouring Properties

8.3.1. The external storage of plant and machinery on the site is permitted under planning 
permission 07/2011/0726/FUL with condition 12 only seeking to restrict external activities on 
the basis of noise disturbance at neighbouring residential properties.  The northern area 
proposed for storage would be 20m further north from the residential properties at 
Hazelwood and Russel House than the area currently used and would now be set behind the 
existing workshop building providing a visual screen.  The storage of plant and part would 
remain close to the existing workshop with the proposed reconfiguration having no greater 
impact on the character and appearance of the area.

8.3.2. A distance of approximately 30m would be present from Hazelwood (bungalow).36m 
from The Conifers and 21m from Fern Hollow (formerly Lincluden) would be present with 
existing hedging and screen fencing proposed.  These inter-relationships are considered 
sufficient so at to prevent the proposed changes from having an undue impact on the 
amenities of neighbouring properties in terms of overshadowing / overdominance and 
overlooking / loss of privacy.

8.3.3. Additional conditions are recommended to prevent and restrict parking, external 
works and machinery storage to certain areas. Wording of existing conditions would also be 
tightened to afford more control, and accordingly the Local Planning Authority having a more 
robust case for enforcement should the applicant breach in the future. With these conditions 
in mind, the proposal is considered to result in overall betterment.

8.4 Highway Issues
The proposed reconfiguration of the external storage areas within the site will not materially 
alter traffic to and from the site.  County Highways have fully assessed the proposal and 
have raised no objections to the proposed variation. 

8.5 Noise Issues
The purpose of the application is to try and address noise and disturbance issues currently 
being experienced by neighbouring properties.  Following the granting of planning permission 
07/2011/0726/FUL the use of the site for the repair and maintenance of plant machinery is 
lawful, as is the storage of plant machinery and parts externally.  The alleged associated 
noise disturbance from the delivery and movement of plant machinery has been investigated 
as a potential breach of condition 12, which essentially restricted the use of any machinery, 
equipment or work activity externally that creates an audible noise any occupied 
neighbouring properties.  The ambiguous wording of this condition is of concern to Officers 
as the trigger of what is audible is not scientific and may vary from person to person and, if 
applied in the strictest sense, may potentially prevent any operation from taking place on the 
site including employees parking on the site to access the workshop.  It is therefore a 
concern of Officers that should enforcement action be taken on the breach of condition 12 as 
currently worded, an Inspector at any subsequent enforcement appeal may consider that this 
condition fails to meet the tests for conditions.

Page 23



10

The proposed changes to the site layout, moving the area of externally storage of plant 
machinery and parts 20m north behind the workshop building would result in an improved 
relationship with residential properties on Chain House Lane to the south.  The plant 
machinery and parts would then be stored against the boundary with the applicant’s own 
property.  Agricultural machinery which is currently stored along the boundary with the 
applicant’s property would be relocated along the southern boundary of the site.  It is 
however not uncommon  in semi-rural and rural areas for agricultural machinery used in 
connection with small holdings and farms from being stored in close proximity to 
neighbouring properties. 

Amendments to Conditions

In addition to the variation of condition 2 (to be renumbered as condition 1 following the 
removal of the obsolete standard 3 year time limit planning condition) the following 
amended/additional conditions are considered to be necessary:

i) Condition 2 (formerly condition 3) amended to secure parking in the area only in the area 
identified on the submitted plan, to state:

“The area of the site identified by approved plan 20.001.PL01 Rev A (Hunter Haus) for 
‘Parking’ shall remain free for the parking of vehicles for the duration of the approved use.

REASON: To allow for the effective use of the parking areas”

ii) Condition 3 (formerly condition 12) amended to remove ambiguity to state:

“All plant machinery and parts storage associated with the business shall only occur in the 
area to the north of the existing workshop building as identified by approved plan 
20.001.PL01 Rev A (Hunter Haus).  No machinery, plant, raw materials, finished or 
unfinished products, parts, crates, packing materials or waste shall be stored externally on 
the site outside of this permitted area with the exception of that listed in Condition 4.

REASON:  To safeguard the amenity and character of the area and to safeguard the living 
conditions of nearby residents particularly with regard to noise and/or disturbance'

iii) A newly imposed condition 4 to permit the storage of agricultural vehicles and machinery 
associated with the smallholding land to the rear adjacent to the proposed new field gate to 
state:
 
“Only agricultural vehicles and agricultural machinery associated with maintenance of the 
agricultural land to the west of the building (as shown on the same approved plan) shall be 
permitted to be stored in the area to the south of the existing workshop building as identified 
by approved plan 20.001.PL01 Rev A (Hunter Haus).  

REASON:  To safeguard the amenity and character of the area and to safeguard the living 
conditions of nearby residents particularly with regard to noise and/or disturbance”

iv) A newly imposed condition 5 to secure the installation of the 2m timber boarded fence 
along part of the northern boundary prior to the relocation of the plant machinery storage 
area to state:

“Prior to first use of the storage area on the northern side, the boundary fence identified on 
approved plan 20.001.PL01 Rev A shall be erected. The approved acoustic screen/fence 
shall be retained and maintained at all times thereafter.

Page 24



11

REASON: To ensure the provision and retention of adequate screening in the interest of 
amenity and to accord with Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire Core Strategy”

9. Conclusion

9.1 The proposal is considered to result in a better relationship with neighbouring residential 
properties and affords the Local Planning Authority the opportunity to impose robust 
conditions that should further breaches on the site that can be enforced should further 
breaches on the site occur.  For these reasons the application is recommended for approval 
subject to the imposition of condtions.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval with Conditions. 

RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS:

1.The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans and suite of documents:
 Location plan (20.001.PL02: Huntar Haus)
 Proposed site layout and boundary treatment (20.001.PL01 Rev A: Huntar Haus 

Planning Design)
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of development 
in accordance with Policy 17 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and Local Plan 2012-
2026 Policy G17

2.The area of the site identified by approved plan 20.001.PL01 Rev A (Hunter Haus) for 
‘Parking’ shall remain free for the parking of vehicles for the duration of the approved use.

REASON: To allow for the effective use of the parking areas

3.All plant machinery and parts storage associated with the business shall only occur in the 
area to the north of the existing workshop building as identified by approved plan 
20.001.PL01 Rev A (Hunter Haus).  No machinery, plant, raw materials, finished or 
unfinished products, parts, crates, packing materials or waste shall be stored externally on 
the site outside of this permitted area.

REASON:  To safeguard the amenity and character of the area and to safeguard the living 
conditions of nearby residents particularly with regard to noise and/or disturbance

4. Only agricultural vehicles and agricultural machinery associated with maintenance of the 
agricultural land to the west of the building (as shown on the same approved plan) shall be 
permitted to be stored in the area to the south of the existing workshop building as identified 
by approved plan 20.001.PL01 Rev A (Hunter Haus).  

REASON:  To safeguard the amenity and character of the area and to safeguard the living 
conditions of nearby residents particularly with regard to noise and/or disturbance

5. Prior to first use of the storage area on the northern side, the boundary fence identified on 
approved plan 20.001.PL01 Rev A shall be erected. The approved acoustic screen/fence 
shall be retained and maintained at all times thereafter.

REASON: To ensure the provision and retention of adequate screening in the interest of 
amenity and to accord with Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire Core Strategy

Page 25



12

6. No maintenance work, the loading of vehicles or the acceptance of deliveries shall take 
place outside the following times:
0730 hrs to 1800 hrs Monday to Friday 
0800 hrs to 1300 hrs on Saturdays.  
No work shall take place on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.
REASON:  To safeguard the living conditions of nearby residents particularly with regard to 
the effects of noise and to accord with Local Plan Policy G17 in the South Ribble Local Plan.

RELEVANT POLICY

National Planning Policy Framework

Central Lancashire Core Strategy
3 Travel  
17 Design of New Buildings

South Ribble Local Plan
F1 Parking Standards
G1 Green Belt
G17 Design Criteria for New Development

Note:  

Other application Informative

Attention is drawn to the condition(s) attached to this planning permission.  In order to 
discharge these conditions an Application for Approval of Details Reserved by Condition form 
must be submitted, together with details required by each condition imposed.  The fee for 
such an application is £116.  The forms can be found on South Ribble Borough Council's 
website www.southribble.gov.uk

Page 26


	Agenda
	1 07/2020/00133/FUL - Suthers Star Garage, Liverpool Road, Walmer Bridge, Preston
	2 07/2020/00195/HOH - 167 Brownedge Road, Lostock Hall
	3 07/2020/00019/VAR - Lincluden, Newgate Lane, Whitestake, Preston

